
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Monday, 14 September 2020

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE MEETING CAN BE VIEWED VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_YzU5ZWViYWItZDAyMC00Mjk3LTgyY2EtNzgw
Njk1ZTRmZWQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22
68c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Reopening High Streets Safely Grant Funding Agreement (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

No items

6  Any other business 

Public Document Pack



Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor
Tel No: 0161 793 3013
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE

TO
THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING

ON 14TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

TITLE: Reopening High Streets Safely Fund

RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the City Mayor:

1. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with The Cities and Local 
Growth Unit (CLGU) for the receipt of a maximum sum of £230,071 in relation to the 
Reopening High Streets Safely (RHSS) Fund for Salford. 

2. Provides delegated authority to the Strategic Director Place, City Solicitor and Chief 
Finance Officer to negotiate and finalise the detailed financial, commercial and 
contractual arrangements in respect of the proposed grant from CLGU to the Council. 

3. Authorises the Strategic Director Place to enter into and complete all necessary 
agreements or documents to give effect to the above recommendations.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Council has received a grant allocation of £230,071 from The Cities and Local Growth 
Unit (CLGU), a joint unit between the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(BEIS) and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)  as part of 
the Reopening High Streets Safely (RHSS) fund to support the safe reopening of high streets 
and other commercial areas by helping to establish safe trading environments for businesses 
and customers.   

In order to draw down the grant from the Reopening High Streets Safely Fund a grant funding 
agreement is required to be entered into between the Council and CLGU. 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the grant funding arrangement to deliver the 
Reopening High Streets Safely project.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
None.

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:
1.0 Background

1.1 The Reopening High Streets Safely Fund is providing £50 million to councils across 
England to support the safe reopening of high streets and other commercial areas.  
The Fund is supported by the England European Regional Development Fund as part 
of the European Structural and Investment Funds Growth Programme 2014-2020. The 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government is the Managing Authority for 
European Regional Development Fund.

1.2 The money has been allocated to councils on a per capita basis and Salford Council 
has received a grant allocation of £230,071 available until March 2021, to support our 
business community with measures that will enable safe trading in public places.  
There are four recommended strands of activity that should help improve consumer 
confidence in the safety of the high street and other retail spaces and increase the 
number of consumers.  These include:

 Action planning to reopen safely.  This will be informed by an evidence base of 
data and engagement of relevant stakeholders and will provide a means of 
tracking the success of the proposed interventions.

 Communications and public information targeted at residents to explain the 
changes to the public, encourage safe behaviours, and reassure them that their 
high streets and other commercial areas are safe.

 Business facing communications focused on supporting small and medium 
sized enterprises (SME’s) in retail areas to help ensure business are able to 
trade safely, e.g. to communicate to retail businesses on how to make 
temporary adjustments to their business premises and good practice for social 
distancing.

 Temporary public realm changes to ensure that public spaces that are next to 
businesses are as safe as possible.  This may include a range of suitable and 
practical safety measures including new signs, street markings and temporary 
barriers.

Page 2



3

2.0 Grant Funding Agreement

2.1 Grants have been awarded to local authorities based on population which serve as a 
proxy for the footfall anticipated on the high streets and the degree of safeguarding 
required. On this basis Salford Council has received an allocation of £230,071.  

2.2 In order to claim back expenditure on eligible activities, a grant funding agreement 
(GFA) will be put in place between the CLGU and Salford Council.  This will show the 
grant allocation, along with more detailed guidance about delivery, tailored to local 
authorities and the specific activities covered by the Fund.  A generic GFA has been 
issued to provide an example of the contracting document which will be signed with 
Salford Council.  CLGU has indicated that the current timeframe for individual 
agreements to be ready for execution will be September 2020.

2.3 The GFA is based upon the standard ERDF GFA, and terms set out in the GFA are 
non-negotiable.  An overview of the terms are as follows:

 RHSS Grant – the funding is only to be used for the approved scope of 
activities as agreed within the grant agreement and which complies in all 
respects with the Eligibility Rules for payment of ERDF funds.  

For costs to be eligible to this project, the Council will need to ensure that it can 
evidence how these costs relate to the four stands of recommended activity for 
RHSS and are over and above any that it might otherwise incur.

The RHSS grant is available to be drawn down from 1 June 2020 until 30 March 
2021.

 Claims for funding – the Council must submit a claim form and provide 
detailed evidence of revenue expenditure defrayed, details of procurements 
completed, and copies of all publicity materials on a quarterly basis before 
payment of the grant can be made.  Section 151 Officer sign-off is required on 
all claims.

 Reporting – the Council is required to provide progress reports alongside grant 
claims.  Given the bespoke nature of the project there will also be a need to 
provide some additional reporting requirements to evidence the outputs and 
outcomes of the investments being made.  

 Repayment / Clawback of funding – in certain circumstances the CLGU may 
withhold payment of the RHSS grant and the Council may also be required to 
repay all or part of the RHSS these include:

o the occurrence of an event of default or a material breach of the 
agreement on the Council’s part (such as failure to comply with the 
conditions of the grant – e.g. the funding is not spent on eligible activity, 
ERDF branding requirements are not adhered to, procurement routes 
followed do not demonstrate an open and transparent process etc., failure 
to achieve a milestone or outputs) 

o if repayment or recovery is required under European Union state aid laws. 

Page 3



4

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
The activities to be carried out under the RHSS project contribute to Salford’s COVID Recovery 
Action Plan.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
As part of the delivery of the RHSS project an action plan will be completed.  This will be 
informed by an evidence base of data and through engagement of relevant stakeholders.  In 
doing so, we shall ensure that we provide better services to Salford residents and that we 
reflect the needs of the communities.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

In the event that the project is not delivered by the completion date or other conditions of the 
Grant Agreement are not met the Council could be deemed to be in breach and be liable to 
CLGU.  However whilst there are a number of obligations on the Council under the Grant 
Agreement it is intended that the Council will follow best practice project management 
procedures and put in place financial management and control procedures to ensure only 
eligible expenditure is included in the RHSS claims.  The Council has a good track record on 
ERDF projects and its procedures have been acknowledged as good practice in previous 
Article 13 and 16 audits under the 2007-2013 programme.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Lauren Armstrong, Solicitor, Commercial (Legal) 
Team
The Shared Legal Service has previously been instructed to advise on the proposed grant 
funding agreement and the state aid implications of the scheme. The grant funding is 
conditional upon the Council’s compliance with the proposed terms (which are ERDF standard 
and non-negotiable for this funding scheme), and the key provisions are as set out above.  The 
Council must ensure that the grant monies are used for eligible expenditure within the remit of 
the scheme, otherwise it is at risk of being clawed back under the terms of the contract.

With regards to the State Aid position, the Communities and Local Government Unit (CLGU) 
has conducted its own analysis of the State Aid position of the RHSS project and concluded 
that there is no State Aid due to the nature of the RHSS eligible activities. The Council has 
followed the Annex A guidance provided by CLGU and has emulated this in its own plans 
insofar as possible to ensure that it delivers the activity in such a way as to maintain this 'no 
aid' position. On this basis (and so long as the Council continues to follow the Annex A 
guidance), it should be comfortable that there are no state aid implications. 

Page 4



5

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Gemma Singleton, Finance Officer Level 2 x 
2578
Total funding of £230,071 ERDF grant Provided by CLGU. Claims will be made in arrears and 
be paid quarterly.
Claims will include a summary of expenditure, details of every transaction in the claim period. 
A new cost centre has been setup so we can easily identify spend and provide invoice 
information as per the ERDF guidelines.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 
There are no direct procurement implications arising from this proposal.  Any procurement 
activity undertaken as part of the delivery of the RHSS project will be undertaken in full 
compliance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders and European Structural and 
Investment Funds national procurement requirements.  The procurement team will support 
Commissioners to procure goods and services as required.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

There are no HR implications arising from this proposal.  

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
The purpose of the RHSS grant is to support the safe reopening of high streets and other 
commercial areas by helping to establish safe trading environments for businesses and 
customers.  As part of these activities residents will be asked to consider how they travel to 
their local high streets and retail areas, and the use of active travel modes will be promoted.  
A large part of the project will involve communications and public information campaigns for 
residents and businesses and as such will involve some digital and more traditional print 
campaigns.  Where possible environmental sustainability practices and measures will be 
identified where appropriate through contracts to deliver the required activity.  

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: TEL NO: 
Sarah Heslop, Development Group Leader, 686 7411

Shaun Clydesdale, Project Co-Ordinator, 793 3178

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Reopening High Streets Safely Grant Funding Agreement

